
CITY OF ST. ANTHONY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 12, 2013, 7:00p.m. 
420 NORTH BRIDGE, SUITE A, ST. ANTHONY, ID, CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

PRESENT: Mayor Neils Thueson, Council Members Suzanne Bagley, Tom Erickson, 
Lisa Haeberle, Rick Hill, Russ Rubert and Rod Willmore. 

ALSO PRESENT: Public Works Superintendent Scott Butigan, City Attorney Bill 
Forsberg, City Clerk-Treasurer Patty Parkinson, Police Chief Jim Smith and eight 
citizens. 

Mayor Neils Thueson called the meeting to order. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIENCE was led by Councilmember Hill. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

2012/2013 Budget Amendment - Mayor Thueson opened the floor and requested 
Clerk Parkinson to provide a summary of the amendments to this year's budget. 
Parkinson reported this hearing is to allow for the city to expend additional revenue 
received by the city. In summary, this amendment will allow for the city to pay back 
what was borrowed from the sanitation fund for the purchase of the loader in the 
amount of $66,666; receiving revenue for the Police COPS grant and Police Body 
Safety Program; an increase of $300 for the Mayor's Youth Council; $3,500 for Cultural 
Advancements; a correction and increase in streets for the heat and light to $23,000; an 
increase in revenue for the transfer from the airport to the streets for snow plowing; an 
increase for all the Police Grants revenue received and an increase in the 121

h Street 
LHRIP Fund for the foot bridge. Should excess funds exist, which Parkinson believes 
there will be, those funds will be transferred into the General Fund Contingency. 
Thueson asked for any comment from the public. There was none. There were also no 
written comments received by Parkinson. Thueson then closed the floor for public 
comment. 

GENERAL BUSINESS 

A motion to add to tonight's agenda Keith Nave and his request to speak about the 
Veteran's Memorial Park was made by Councilmember Willmore and seconded by 
Councilmember Bagley. This is being added as he is requesting permission to add to 
the Memorial Park and time is important. All councilmembers approved. Motion passed 
6-0. 

Mayor's Youth Council/Chris Tucker - Chris Tucker, Vice Principal and Athletic 
Director of South Fremont High School, said he is the advisor for the Mayor's Youth 
Council. This program will tie into the student council at the high school. Tucker said 
he really has some kids who are able to step up and help out in the community. Tucker 

1 



wanted to know if there is anything the Mayor's Youth Advisory Council can do for the 
city. This would be any type of service project. Tucker said he is very happy with the 
current student council right now. They are busy and the kids want to make a 
difference. Eventually, these are the kids who will be leaders in our community, filling 
council member's seats. They will learn how to sacrifice their time and work hard to 
make a difference. Last year was the first year for the Mayor's Youth Council and 
Tucker said he can see it getting bigger and better each year. Thueson said he is really 
impressed with the Mayor's Youth Council and the work Tucker and Councilmember 
Bagley have done. Ryan Pope, the boys' basketball coach, is in charge of the student 
council this year and he was able to attend a leadership camp in Boise. This year they 
will be doing tail gating parities prior to football games and the community is invited to 
attend for free sloppy-joes. This is just some of the things the kids are doing to provide 
pride in their community. Thueson said he would like to see a group of these kids at a 
council meeting. Tucker said November would be a good time. Councilmember 
Erickson asked if this was open to other kids besides those in student council. Tucker 
said they would never exclude any one. Bagley said she appreciates Tucker's support 
and the support of the school administration as they are the reason the program is 
successful. Jim Hobbs, planning and zoning member, said he would like to invite the 
youth at one of their meetings as well. Tucker said the more the kids can see what 
people in their community do, the more they will appreciate their community. 

Keith NaveNeteran's Memorial Park- Keith Nave said he is the commander at the 
Veterans of Foreign Wars (VFW). Nave said he is here tonight to talk about the 
Veteran's Memorial Park. Several years ago, scouts put up a wooden sign there, as a 
scout project. He said the sign is becoming a disgrace; it's chipped, cracked and 
broken. They would like something better. After doing some research, Nave said a 
travertine rock engraved with the words Veteran's Memorial Park is about $900. This 
doesn't include setting the rock with a fork lift or the foundation for the rock. This rock 
would be about two feet wide, four feet long and about a foot and a half high. Nave said 
Tharen Garrett volunteered to build the forms. They would like council's approval to 
take the old sign down and put up the new one in front of the shrub, pushing it back a 
bit. This is proposed to happen in the spring. Council discussed it and thought they 
could purchase the concrete foundation if needed through the parks fund and really 
liked the idea and they fully support the VFW doing this. PWS Butigan said the place 
he has chosen to place the sign looks like a good spot. Mayor Thueson said he would 
like to see some nice "Welcome" signs for the city of St. Anthony. Thueson said he 
spoke to Rod Nichols and he said he would chair a committee to look into various signs 
for the "Welcome" signs. Thueson said Sugar City has a gorgeous one coming into 
their city. Ucon has one with lights. Nave said he needs a letter from the city 
authorizing the travertine rock for the park. Clerk Parkinson will prepare a letter. 

Shop with a Cop Program/Bagley - Councilmember Bagley introduced Corporal 
Burton from Madison County Sheriff's Office. Burton played a short video for council 
about the Shop with a Cop Program. Councilmember Bagley said one of the privileges 
Burton and she have is serving on the board of the Shop with a Cop Program. Last 
year they shopped for 85 families. Fremont County, Jefferson County, Madison County, 

2 



Teton County and Clark County all participate in this program. It is quite a process to 
identify the children who participate. They work with the schools and the Resource 
Officers. Bagley said a lot of them are neighbors and friends. This film was shown to 
council to ask for their support of the program and to show what the program does for 
their community. Last year the Mayor's Youth Council participated in helping out with 
the program for their first time. They collected over 400 gifts, including cash. Children 
in the program are assigned an officer, ride in a police car, have breakfast at 
McDonald's (all donated) and then go shopping at Kmart for their entire family. Burton 
said anyone can see from the pictures what a valuable program this is. If you ever want 
to see a cop cry this is the time. Burton said they served over 85 families and 95 
officers donated their time to shop with the kids from 12 different agencies. They are 
limited by the number of families they can serve by the amount of the funds received 
throughout the year. Burton reported it is an amazing program. They are requesting 
funds to help support the program. Bagley said they appreciate the funding the city has 
provided so far and would like to request another $500 this year. Bagley said Mayor 
Thuesen is invited to come. Thuesen said he would be there. Burton said it takes 
about 200 volunteers to make the program happen. Thuesen said it is in the budget 
and they should invoice the city for the requested donation. Keith Nave said the VFW 
will be having a meeting on the 181

h and he thinks he can get the VFW to donate some 
money. Bagley said she would come to that meeting. 

Henderson Property report on clean up - Clerk Parkinson showed before and after 
photos of the property. The property needs to be cleaned up and the owner has been 
notified and Sid Bristol, son of the owner, attended the August 81

h council meeting 
saying he needed a month to clean it up. Councilmember Erickson asked if anyone has 
come in to say they are finished with the clean-up. Parkinson reported she hasn't heard 
from anyone. The home is currently vacant. Councilmember Hill said he has some 
experience with the Henderson property in the past and he doesn't think anything will 
happen with it. Councilmember Bagley said it needs to be cleaned up and the city 
should take some action to clean it. Rubert said he didn't know how many opportunities 
you need to give a person. Attorney Forsberg said the city has the authority, after 
giving notice and the opportunity for the party to appear, to cite the property owner or 
the alternative would be to have public works clean it up and then bill back to the 
property owner the costs. There have been no citations issued up to this point. 
Councilmember Willmore and Councilmember Bagley didn't believe issuing a citation 
would be effective. It can be added to the tax rolls as long as the county commission 
approves. Willmore asked how much to clean up. PWS Butigan said about $1000. A 
motion to authorize public works to clean the property up and take whatever legal 
avenues are available to the city to be reimbursed was made by Councilmember Rubert 
and seconded by Hill. All councilmembers were in favor. Motion passed 6-0. Jim 
Hobbs said there are many properties similar in the city and wanted to know if this is an 
example or if something is being done with the others. Thuesen said every year they 
send out letters and the city does what they can, one at a time. He reported they will 
continue to send letters each spring to those properties considered a nuisance. 

Parked Trailer/Drex Hathaway/Smith report- Drex Hathaway, 317 E 3rd N, provided 

3 



council with a diagram of his house and his front walk showing where his recreational 
vehicle (RV) is parked. Hathaway said he disagrees with the city ordinance requiring 
him to move his RV. He said the ordinance is discriminatory towards many citizens in 
the city. He said it discriminates against homeowners who have sidewalks in front of 
their homes. He said there are homes with no sidewalks, homes with sidewalks against 
the curb and homes with sidewalks away from the curb. He said his property has a 
sidewalk that is against the curb and then comes in from the curb by about 1 O feet then 
goes back to the curb. On his block some properties have sidewalks and some have 
nothing. He said those without sidewalks are able to use their entire length of their 
driveways for parking and he cannot. He said homeowners are being punished for 
having sidewalks. He said the ordinance leaves room for interpretation and does not 
specify having the sidewalk be a straight line through the property. He said his sidewalk 
is continuous even though it isn't a straight line. Hathaway then said he is being 
harassed by his neighbor as his neighbor believes he is reporting him for having a 
nuisance property. Hathaway said he has a neighbor who uses his property as a 
salvage yard and the city has made successful efforts to have him clean up. He 
appreciates what the city has done. However, the city is not aware of the effects this 
has on him and his family. He said, whenever the city sends out its notice, he and his 
family become fearful, as his neighbor then starts harassing them. Hathaway said he 
has been harassed in the middle of the night with the neighbor yelling at him. He said 
he is fearful it will escalate should he call the police and so he doesn't call the police. 
Councilmember Erickson said he asked Hathaway to attend tonight's meeting. Erickson 
said he drove all over the city and in just about every block there is a trailer or 
something parked on their property which overhangs the sidewalk. Erickson said it isn't 
right to single out one person. The council needs to consider these things and to either 
back off or enforce the laws in this town for everybody. Chief Smith said there was a 
complaint received by a female regarding the RV. Hathaway said it was his neighbor's 
mother and the harassment is beginning again. Smith said this is an ongoing problem 
and the sidewalk that goes under the trailer is being blocked by the overhanging RV. 
Smith suggested something should be set there to block anyone from hitting their head 
or to change the pathway. Smith said he didn't cite Hathaway but asked for the RV to 
be moved. Smith said this isn't just a city ordinance; it is also a state ordinance. As far 
as enforcement within the city, it is a priority however, not a high priority, due to the time 
it takes to issue citations and follow up on many occasions. Smith said they try to warn 
people first and then they have to go back and back often times three or four times to 
get a result. Smith said when they were issuing citations they almost had the entire city 
in compliance. However, this created community uproar and they have since backed 
off. This year they have issued many more warnings and fewer citations with more 
attempts at personal contact. Councilmember Haeberle said she knows the Hathaway 
family and they keep their yard well and the trailer is nice and there is plenty of room to 
travel around the trailer. Forsberg said this is a state law and the city can't repeal a 
state law. Forsberg said there is an unobstructed, continuous walkway there and he 
doesn't see any violation of the law in this case. Forsberg said he is concerned about 
the "goose-neck" of the trailer and there should be something done about it. Hathaway 
said he has blocked it in the past with saw horses and he can continue to do that. 
Thuesen said there is more than just this one in town and they all need to be 

4 



addressed. Forsberg said it is unrealistic to cite everyone in town for every violation. 
Councilmember Rubert said the last time this came up he drove around town and found 
five examples. Rubert talked to Smith and was told they try to get to as many as they 
can. Officer Harris suggested having the owners of the properties move the sidewalks 
out beyond the trailer. Rubert said what has been demonstrated here is an unobstructed 
pathway around the RV and he should be allowed to continue to park it there. Forsberg 
said he just wanted to direct one other comment to Hathaway; that if there is someone 
standing on his property, making threats, screaming at him and his children then he 
needs to follow up with the police. Hathaway said it is scary when they are standing at 
your door at two in the morning. Forsberg said that is when he needs to contact the 
police. Thuesen said if he is being harassed he needs to follow up. Forsberg said what 
emboldens this behavior is when you don't do anything. Councilmember Willmore said 
he can't see he is breaking the law as long as the RV is being barricaded and people 
can move around the trailer. Thuesen said Hathaway's proposal is accepted. Thuesen 
said to Smith the police department needs to make some effort to get some of these 
trailers overhanging the sidewalk taken care of. There is a real concern and they need 
to be addressed at the officer's discretion. Thuesen thanked Hathaway. 

Ordinance 2013-03 Amending Ordinance No. 2012-4 2012/2013 Budget 
Amendment- A motion to suspend the reading of Ordinance No. 2013-03 Amending 
Ordinance No. 2012-4 2012/2013 Budget Amendment three times on three different 
days and read by title one time only was made by Councilmember Willmore and 
seconded by Councilmember Bagley. All council members were in favor. Motion 
passed 6-0. Willmore read the ordinance by title. A motion to adopt Ordinance No. 
2013-03 Amending Ordinance No. 2012-4 2012/2013 Budget Amendment was made by 
Councilmember Erickson and seconded by Councilmember Hill. A roll call vote followed 
with Council Members Willmore, yes; Hill; yes; Haeberle, yes; Erickson, yes; Bagley, 
yes; and Rubert, yes. Motion passed 6-0. 

Discussion of City Parks open and closing times/Smith - Chief Smith deferred to 
Officer Harris. Harris said there have been some issues lately and to assist in keeping 
the public safe he suggested the city change the park hours to those used for hunting. 
Harris said there is no real reason for people to be in parks after dark other than to 
cause trouble. Mayor Thuesen said the type of vandalism there has been in the parks 
is broken sprinkler heads and the sprinklers don't come on until after 10 o'clock at night, 
so vandalism happens after dark anyway. Thuesen said a solution is to purchase some 
"game" cameras which are motion sensitive. Several cities are using systems like this. 
Smith said the cameras at the Skate Park have been effective in catching vandals. 
Thuesen said these cameras are not terribly expensive and to leave the park closing 
times as is. Councilmember Erickson agreed. Council discussed the pros and cons of 
parks, their closing times, and vandalism. Thuesen said he would entertain a motion. A 
motion to leave the closing times in the parks at 10 p.m. and not change the current 
resolution was made by Erickson and seconded by Councilmember Haeberle. All 
councilmembers were in favor. Motion passed 6-0. 

Discussion of Summer Fest street blockages/location change - PWS Butigan said 

5 



it will cost about $8000 to block off Bridge Street in order to confonn to Idaho 
Transportation Department's (ITD) requirements. The other option is to leave it just as it 
is. Keith Nave said when he lived in California they had a Festival and when they 
moved it off the main street it died. If Summer Fest is moved it'll die. Councilmember 
Rubert said the event is defined by where it is at. This was discussed at the Chamber 
meeting and the city should do what they can to keep it where it is at. The Chamber 
has discussed the possibility of another organization taking over Summer Fest, this is 
still pending. Butigan said ITD may no longer issue the necessary permit and so the 
signs should be upgraded. Clerk Parkinson suggested writing a grant for the signs. 
Council all agreed to continue as is and not move the location and make attempts to 
begin purchasing the correct signage as this isn't the only event requiring roads to be 
blocked. Additionally, an attempt for a grant will be looked in to. 

Addition of Scheduled Payments and approval of Addendum with Access 
Idaho/Parkinson - Clerk Parkinson said the city uses Access Idaho to allow a person 
to pay with a credit card at the time of transaction. Access Idaho collects the fee 
directly from the credit card user. This program costs nothing for the city to use. 
Parkinson would like to add on to this program to allow customers to set up a payment 
to the city for a future date. This requires the city to sign an addendum to the Service 
Level Agreement for these electronic transactions to enable the ability to schedule 
payments. Customers can then do automatic withdrawals from their credit cards or 
checking accounts. It would cost the customer three percent plus a dollar of the 
transaction amount. The city has a sign posted saying what the fees are. There has 
always been an option to have automatic withdrawals from a checking account for free. 
This option allows for credit cards and the ability to do this through the city's web site. 
Council was in favor of this and signed the addendum. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Mayor Thuesen opened the floor for public comment. 

Jack Wright, of St. Anthony, said the people at Custom Meats run their coolers all day 
and all night. Wright said everyone in the neighborhood is upset about the noise and he 
can't sleep at night. Wright asked how it is they have the right to run their cooler all 
night long, on and off, fast and slow. Wright said he thought they couldn't violate the 
noise ordinance. Attorney Forsberg said if there is something disturbing the peace it 
may be considered a nuisance. Forsberg said when it happens Wright must call the 
police after 10 o-clock at night and an officer will log it, record it and if necessary issue a 
citation for it. This is a commercial zone. However, Forsberg said even if it's in a 
commercial zone it does not give them the right to operate a nuisance. Officer Harris 
said he told Wright if it came on after 10 p.m. to contact the police department and he 
hasn't heard from him since. Mayor Thuesen told Wright you don't have to come to the 
council meeting to file a complaint. He can come to the front office and complain and 
someone from the police department will assist him. Thuesen thanked him for bringing 
this to the city council attention and it would be addressed by the police department. 

6 



There being no further public comment Mayor closed the floor. 

INVOICES & CLAIMS - Payment Approval Reports were presented to Council. 
Following some questions for staff, which were satisfactorily answered, a motion to pay 
the invoices and claims was made by Councilmember Willmore and seconded by 
Councilmember Rubert. All council members present were in favor. Motion passed 6-
0. 

MINUTES - Regular Council Meeting Minutes of August 8, 2013 were presented to 
council. Mayor Thueson asked Chief Smith if the van surplussed at the last meeting 
had been sold. Smith said they are working on getting rid of it. Thueson asked PWS 
Butigan if anything had been done to the back of the hardware store and theater. 
Butigan thought they had lines where they needed to be. People are currently parking 
where they shouldn't be. Thueson asked the police department to give out warnings 
when needed. A motion to accept the Regular Council Meeting Minutes of August 8, 
2013 was made by CouncilmemberWillmore and seconded by Councilmember Bagley. 
All council members present were in favor. Motion passed 6-0. 

A motion for a short five minute break was made by Councilmember Rubert and 
seconded by Councilmember Bagley. All council members present were in favor. 
Motion passed 6-0. 

Mayor Thueson requested council to return in five minutes. 

After a five minute break, Mayor Thueson called the meeting back to order. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO IDAHO CODE (a) to consider hiring a public 
officer, employee, staff member or individual agent. A motion to enter into executive 
session pursuant to Idaho code 67-2345, subsection 1 (a) to consider hiring a public 
officer, employee, staff member or individual agent and (f} to communicate with legal 
counsel was made by Councilmember Willmore and seconded by Councilmember 
Erickson. A roll call vote followed with Council Members Willmore, yes; Hill; yes; 
Haeberle, yes; Erickson, yes; Bagley, yes; and Rubert, yes. Motion passed 6-0. 

Mayor Thueson dismissed everyone from the room except for the council members and 
Attorney Forsberg. 

After about an hour, Mayor called the meeting back to order at approximately 9: 15 p.m. 

GENERAL BUSINESS 

Discussion of Retiring Chief of Police and/or Appointing a New Chief - Mayor 
Thueson asked for suggestions for the replacement of the Chief of Police. Chief Smith 
said he will be retiring January 15th_ A motion to allow the mayor to proceed with his 
process for appointing a new Chief of Police was made by Councilmember Rubert and 
seconded by Councilmember Haeberle. All council members were in favor. Motion 
passed 6-0. 

7 



DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

Chief Smith reported Officer Distelhorst graduates tomorrow from P.O.S.T. The DUI 
grant is over. There are two to three volunteer officers for the Shop with a Cop 
program. The homecoming parade is 10:30 tomorrow morning. 

PWS Butigan reported they have checked out the lights for the Rotary Park for the flag. 
They can't mount a light on the building as it is too far away and would need to be too 
large. Instead, the city will mount some lights in concrete which will shine up the pole. 
They expect to pour the concrete next week. The current light pole is not ours and so 
the city cannot use the electricity from there and instead will come for the building or the 
pole with its own meter. 

Attorney Forsberg provided council with some information and an application of 
admission for the citizen's law academy. Attendance is by invitation only and very 
limited. The application must be filled out and then reviewed for acceptance. It is a 
tremendous program. The purpose of this academy is to educate the ordinary person 
on legal issues. They talk about everything from civil law, criminal law, bankruptcy law, 
appellate law, even politics. This is for five Wednesday evenings with a chance to talk 
informally with the folks presenting. There is no cost. This is done once every two or 
three years. It begins next week. 

Clerk Parkinson reported the city has been awarded an airport grant for the Stanford 
Airport. The grant is for $100,000 for the maintenance of the existing taxi-way. The city 
must match 25% or $25,000. Parkinson believed the match could be work in kind. The 
city has three years to work on this project. Parkinson also provided council with the 
Month End Fund Summary for the period ending August 31, 2013. Parkinson also 
reported hiring a new Web Designer, Greg Lemmon. Lemmon said he would charge us 
by the hour, with most things taking 10 to 15 minutes depending on the job. 

COUNCIL & MAYOR REPORTS 

Councilmember Rubert had nothing to report. 

Councilmember Bagley had nothing to report. 

Councilmember Erickson asked how the SCADA system is coming along. PWS 
Butigan said they are working on it and everything seems to be going pretty well. The 
computer is in and all the programs are installed. They are coming back Monday to 
program the PLC or the brains out in the field. The prior company has come back and 
picked up their computer. Erickson also asked about footings for the foot bridge at the 
end of Main Street. Butigan reported the footings are poured and they are now waiting 
for the foot bridge and its final delivery date to order the crane necessary to set the 
bridge. 

Councilmember Haeberle had nothing to report. 

8 



Councilmember Hill had nothing to report. 

Councilmember Willmore thanked PWS Butigan for taking care of Dee Young at the 
airport. 

Mayor Thueson said he spoke to the Rotary and they think the new park needs a 
name. Thueson said he suggested Rotary Park for the name. The Rotary liked the 
name and Thueson felt it fitting as they have done much of the work creating it. 

There being no further business to come before the Council the meeting was adjourned 
at approximately 10: 15 p.m. by Mayor Thueson. 

z.{£00~-
Attest: 

~II~~~ atty U ITTUhPar Tnson:cttYCl€fk-T reasurer 

9 


